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Independent Auditors” Report

To the Members of Vidiarbha Industries Power Limited

Report on the Ind AS Financial Statements

1. We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Vidarbha Industries Power limited
(“the Company ™) which comprise the Batance Sheet as at Mareh 31, 2018, the Statement of Profit
and Loss (ncluding Other Comprelensive Income), the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of

Changes i Fquiry for the year then ended. and a summary o7 the sianificant accoonting policies and
ather expianatory information (hereinatier referred 1o as “the nd AS financia! ciaterents™).

Managements Responsihility for the lnd AS Finaneial Statements

2. The Company’s Board of Directors 15 responsible for the matters stated iy Seetion 134(3) ot the
Companies Aetle 2003 (Cthe Act™ with respect (o the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements
that give a true and fan view of stare of afliues Ginancwl positon), profil (financial performance
including other comprehensive income), cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in
accordance with the accounting princples generally aceepied o Indin, including the Tndian
Accounting Standards {Ind AS) presevived under section 133 of the Act.

Tius responsibility glso mcludes maintenance of adeguate accounting records in accordance with (he
provisions of the Act for saleguarding of the assets of the Company and {or preventing and deteeuing
frands and other irregulanties; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies: making
qudgments and edtimates that are reasonable and prudent: and gesin, implomentation  and
sitenance of adequate Internal financial controls, that were operating erfectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant 1o the preparation and presentation of
the Ind AS financial statemenzs that give & true and fair view and arve free from matenal misstatemant,
whether due to frand or crvor

Audifors® Responsibility
2. Ourresponsibility 15 1o express an vpinion on these Ind AS financial statements hased on our audit.
4. We have taken o account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and audibng siandards and

matters which are requived to be included in (he audit report under the provisions of the Aot and the
Rules made thereunder.

Pl

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements tn accordance with the Standards on
Auditing  gpecified  under  Secton 43¢0 of the Act and  other apphicable  authoritative
provineentents issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, Those Standards and
prosouncentents require that we comply with eth:cat requirements and plan and perfenn the audit 1o
abtain reasonable assurance about whether the Tnd AS financial statemants are free from material
misstatentent.

6. An audit involves perforiming procedures to oblain audit evidence about the amounts and the
disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements. The procedures selected depene on the auditor’s
Judgment, including the assessment of the nisks of matenal misstatement of the Ind AS financial
statemems, whether due 1o fraud or error. In makime those risk assessments, the auditor considers
mternal Mancial contro! relevant to the Conpany’s preparation ol the Ind AS financial statements
that oive a rae and fazy view in order 1o desiun audit procedures that are appropriate in the
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citcumstances. An audit alse ncludes evaluating vz appropriiateness of the avcaunting policies nsec
and e reasorahlencss of the accomnting vstimiates made by the Company™s Directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of 1he Ind AS fnaocial staienents.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obianed 15 sutficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opmion on the hil AS financial statements.

nion

I v opinion and w the best o our information and accordime to the explanations given o ux, the
aloresaid Ind AS tinancial statements give the mformation reguired by e Act in the maaner o
vequived and give a true and (afs view i canformity with the accounting principles generally accepied
in India including the Ind AS, of the state of affairs (financial position) of the Company as at March
31, 2008 and s projis (financial performance including other comprehensive income). s cash
flows and the charges in equity for the year ended on that dare.

Report an Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Y.

10

As reqirad by the Companies (Auditor’'s Report) Oicer. 2016 (“the Order™) issued by the Cenral
Government in terms of Scction 3T of the Act, we give m “Anppexure B a statement on the

N

matiers speeiticd in paragraphs 3 and 3 of the Order.
As reguired by Scevion 143¢3) of the Act, we report that;

@y We have sought and obtamed all the information and explananons which to the best of our
knowledge and beliel were necessary for the purposes of our audit

b In our opinion. proper haoks of account as required by law have been kapt by the Company se far
as it anpears [rom our examination of thase fookas.

¢)  Lhe Balance Sheet, the Statement of Prafit and Loss. the Cash Tlow Statement and Statement of
Charges m Equity dealt witl by this Report are in agreement witl the books of account:

d) In our opinion. the aforesaid Ind AS financial statementss comply  with the Indian
Accounhog Standards specizied winder Seetion 133 of the Acl,

¢l On the hasis of the wrilten representasions recerved from the dinectors as on March 31, 2018
tahen on record hy the Roard of Diectors, none of the divectors 18 disqualified as on March 31,
ZO0IR from betpg appomted as a directar in 1emms of Section 1642) of the Acy,

) Wath respect (o the adequacy of the ieraal tinancial controls over financial reporting of the

Company and 1he epereting effectiveness of such controis. refer to our separate Report in
“Apneaure AT

i)

With respect to the other matiers 1o be incioded i the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditen=) Rules. 2014, m our opion and 1o the best of our
mformatron and according to the explanations given w us:

Seritie 2o
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i The Company has disclosed ke “mpact of Hending iigaticns a5 at Mareh 312008 on s

fimancml positon ny its Ind AS financiat statenems. Refer Nove ho. 20

i The Company has long-lerm contracts but no devivative contracts as at Maceh 31, 201 for

which there were no materiad foreseeable losses.

i There wore no amowats which were reguived 10 he uansterred 10 the Investor Educaton and
Protection Tund by the Company ditripg the vear ended March 31, 201%:

Far Pathak H.D. & Associaes
IMirm Registration Number: 1077:3W
Chartered Accountantz

Vishal D. Shah
Pariney

FAU

Membership Number: 119303

Place Muibim
Date: Aprit 18,2018
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Annexure A to Independent Auditors' Report

Referred to in paragraph 10(0) of the Independent Auditors” Report of even date to the members of
Vidarhha Industries Power Limited on the financial statements for the year ended Mareh 34, 2018

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clanse (1) of Sub-seclion 3 of Section 143 of
the Act

€. We huve audited the internal financial controls over miancial reporling, of Vidarbha Industries Power
Limited (“the Company”) as of March 3¢, 2018 in conjunction with our axdil of the finaneial staternents
of the Compuny for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2. The Company's manzgerment is rexponsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial conlrols
based on the internal contral over finanecial reporting eriteria established by the Company considering
the essenlial components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Interial Financial
Controls Over Finaneial Reporting issved by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (1CAT).
These responsibilities include the design. implementation and maintenance of adequale internal
financial controls that were operating eflectively for ensuring the orderdy and efficient conduct of iis
business, including adherenee to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of {rauds and ervors, the accuracy and compicteness of the aceounting revords, and the timely
prepacation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors' Responsibility

3. Our responsibititv is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial eontrols over financial
reporting based on our audit. We condected our audit in accordance with the Guidanee Note on Audit of
Inleraal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on
Aunditing deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable to an audit of
internal financial controls, holh applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and botl issned by
the 1CAL Those Standards and the Guidanee Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable agsurance about whether adequate internal financisl
controls over financial reporting was established und maintained and if sueh controls operated
effectively in all malerial respects.,

4. Qur audit imvolves performing procednres to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
fimancial controls systent over finaneial reporting and their operating effeetiveness, Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial veporting neluded oblaining an understanding of internal financial
conirols over financial reporting. assessing the risk that a material weakness exisls, and testing and
evaluating the design and operaling effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed visk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessmemt of the risks of material
missiatewent of tie finuncial statenients, whether due to fraud or crror.

We belicve that the sudit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s inlernal finkncial controls system over finaneial reporting.
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Annexurve A 1o Independent Auditors’ Report

Refemed Lo in paragraph 10(f) of the independent Avditors’ Reporl of even dale (o the members of
Vidarbha Industries Power Limited on the financial statements lor the year ended March 31, 2018

Mceaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

6. A company's internal financial control over finaneia) seporting is a process designed o provide
raasonable assurance regarding the reliability of finarcial reporting and the preparation of financial
sluiements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting prineiples. A
company’s internul tinaneial control over financial reporting includes those policies wd proceduras thay
{1) pertain to the maintenance of records thal, in reasonable detail. accurately and fairly reflect the
trancactions aad dispositions of the assets of the company: (2) provide reasonable agsurance that
transactionx are vecorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
senerally accepted accounting principles. and that receipls and expenditures of the conipany are being
made only i accordance with authorisazions of management and diveclors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding preventlion ar timely detection of wnauthorised acyuisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the finaneial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

7. Because of the inherent Bimilations of internal financial controls over financial veporting, ineluding the
pessibitity of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
arror ar fraud may oceur und not he detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over finaneial reporting Lo fulure periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial
control over {inancial reporting may become inadeuate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with Lhe policies or procedures may deteriarate.

Opinion

8. Inour opinion, the Company has, in all material respeets, an adequate internad financial controls svstem
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effecrively as at March 31, 2018, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteriy
vslablished by the Company considering the cssential components of inlernal control stated in the
Guidanee Note op Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Finaneial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Charterced Acconntants of India,

For Pathak H.D. & Associates
Finu Registzation Number: 107783W
Chartered Accountants

Vishal D Shgh
Partmer
Membership Number: 119303

Place: Munibai
Date. Aprit 18,2018
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Ammexure B to Independent Anditors’ Report
Referred to in paragraph g of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date (o 1he members of Vidarbha
Industries Power Limited on the Ind AS financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2018

i

ii.

iii.

iv.

vi.

(a) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, inchiding quantitative details

and situation, of fixed assets.

() The fixed assets are physically verified by the Management according to a phased programme

(c)

vil, (a)

(b)

designed to cover all the items over 2 period of three years, which in our opinion, is reasonable
having regards to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the programme,
a portion of fixed assets have been physically verified by the Management during the year and no
material discrepancies have been noticed on such verification.,

The title deeds of iimmovable properties classified under Finanee lease receivable as disclosed in
Note 3.3 (b) and 3.6 (e) to the financial statements, are held in the name of the Company.

The physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals by the
Management during the year. The discrepancies noticed on physical verification of inventory as
compared to book records were not malerial. In our opinion, the frequency of verification is
reasonable.

The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited
Liabilily Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the
Act. Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3(iii), (iii){(a), (Wi)(b) and (iii}c) of the said Order are not
applicable to the Company.

Based on information and explanation given Lo us in respect of loans, investments, guarantees nad
sccurities, the Company has complied with the provisions of Section 185 and 186(1) of the Act.
Further, as the Company iz engaged in the business of providing infrastructural facilities, the
provisions of Section 186 [except for sub-scction(1)] are not applicable to it.

The Company has not accepted any deposits {rom the public within the meaning of Sections 73, 74,
75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed there under to the extent notified. During the year under
audit, no order has been passed by the Company Law Board or Natiana! Comipany Law Tribunal or
Reserve Bank of India or any other Tribunal.

Pursuant to the rules made by the Central Government of India, the Company is required to
maintain cost records as specified under Section 148(1) of the Act in respect of its products. We
have broadly reviewed the same, and are of the opinion that, prima facle, the prescribed accounts
and records have been madc and maintained. We have not, however, made a detaijled examination
of the records with & view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, in our opinion, except for dues in respect of income tax, the Company is generally
regular in depositing the undisputed statutory dues in respect of excise duty though there has been
a slight delay in one case, and is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including
provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income tax, sales tax, service tax, Goods and Service
tax, duty of customs, valuc added tax, cess and other material statutory dues, as applicable, with the
appropriate authorities. There are no nndisputed amounts paysable in respecl of such applicable
slatutory dues as at March 31, 2048 {or a period of more than six months from the date the become
payable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, there are no dues of income-tax, sales-tax, scrvice-tax, Goods and Service tax,
duty of customs, and duty of excise or value added tax which have not heen deposited on account of
any dispute.
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Annexure B to Independent Audilors’ Report
Referred to in paragraph g of the Independent Anditors’ Report of mven date 1o the members of Vidarbha
ncdustiies Power Limed on tze Ind AS financial stalements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2018

Viii. According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanation
given to us, the Company has nol detavled in repayment of lowns or horrowings o any financial
mstitation or hank or Government as at the hatance sheet date.

ix. The Company has nol raised any moneys by way of inifial public offer, further public offer
(incinding debt instruments). Term loans were applied for the purpose for which those were
obtained.

X. Durirg the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in

accordance with the generally aceepted auditing practices in Tndia, and according to the
informalion and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any ivslance of material
fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers ar employees, noticed or reported during
the vear, nor have we been inivrmed of any such case by the Management.

X1, The Company has nol paid managerial 1emuneration. Thercfore, provisions of clause 3 (x1) of the
Ovder is not applicable to the Campany.

xii. As the Company is nut a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules. 2014 are vol applicable to it the
provisions of Clause 3{xi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xiil.  The Company has entered inlo transactions with related parties in compliance with the provisions
of Sections (77 and 188 of the Act. The details of sueh refuled party transactions have been
disclosed in the financial statements as vequired under Indinn Acrounting Standard (Ind AS) 24,
Related Party Disclosures specified in the Companies (India:: Accounting Standurds) Rules. 20153
(as amended) under Section 133 of the Act.

xiv, The Company has not made any preferential allotnmient or private placement of shures or fully or
partly convertible debentures during the vear under review, Accordingly, the provisions ol Clause
3(xiv} of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xv, The Company has not eutered into any non-cush transactions with its directors or persons
connected with him. Accardingly, the provisions of (Clause 3(xv) of the Order are not applicable {o
the Company.

xvi, The Company is not receuired 1o be registered under Seetion 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934, Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3{xx1) of the Order are not applicable 10 the Company.

For Pathalk H.D. & Associates
Firm Registration Number: 107785W
Chartered Accountants

Vishdl D. Shah
Partner
Membership Number: 119303

Place: Mumbai
Date: April 18, 2018
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Vidarbha Industries Power Limited
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2018

Particulars

ASSETS

Non-current assets
Property, planl and equiprment
Intangible assels
Financial assets.
Investments
Finance lease receivables
Other financial assets
Other non-current assets

Current assets
Invenlories
Financial assets:
Trade receivables
Cash and cash equivalenis

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalenis

Loans

Finance lease receivables

Other financial assets
Other currani assets

Total Assets
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity

Equity share capital

Other equity
Inslrument entirely equily in nalure
Reservs and surplus

Liabilities

Non-current liahilities

Financial liabilities
Borrowings

Provisions

Deferred {ax liabilities (net)

Current liabilitics
Financiai liabilities
Borrowings
Trade payables
Olher financial liatilities
Cther cursent fiabilities
Provisions
Current tax Liabilities

Total Equity and Liabilities

Significant sccounting policies
Notes to financial slalements

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial stalements

Rupees in Lakhs

Note As at As at
No. March 31, 2018 Marsch 31, 2017
3.1 631 -
3.2 1,065 1,143
3.3(a) 4,449 4,425
3.3(b) 358,552 374.925
3.3(c) 1,421 1.160
3.4 1,054 5,312
3.5 5,523 8,832
d.6(a) 122,672 82,795
3.6(b) 4,862 4,801
3.6(c) - 4,872
3.6(d) 21,287 56096
3.6(e) 18,192 17,458
3.6(f) 6,617 8,211
3.7 3,617 1,452
549,842 551,182
3.8 149 149
3.9 1,342 1,342
3.10 188,722 164,414
3.11 211,439 239,148
3.12 512 465
3.13 51,533 51,433
3.14(a) 50,025 50,331
3.14(b) 3,844 57
3.14(c) 36,468 3B.523
3.15 386 100
i.16 79 17
3.17 5,363 5,19¢
549,842 551,182
2
110 23



Vidarbha Industries Power Limited

As per our altached Report of even date

For Pathak H.D. &Associates For and on behaif of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regisiration No. 107783 w

Vishal D.Shah Shrikant D Kulkarni
Partner Director
Membership No. 118303 DIN 05136393

Place. Mumbai
Date: April 18, 2018

Rashna Hoshang Khan
Director
DIN 08928148

Suresh Raribhau Joshi
Director
DIN 07143407

Mantu Kumar Ghosh
Chief Finance Officer

Sayli K. Dabholkar
Company Secretary and Manager
Membership No. A43538

Place: Mumbai
Date: April 18, 2018



Vidarbha industries Power Limited
Statemenal of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31 2018

Pariculars

Revenue from Operations
Other Income

Total revenue

Expenses
Cosl of fuel consumed {Refer note 18)
Employee benefit expense
Finance costs
Depreciation and Amorlisation expense
Generation, aministration and oither expenses

Total expenses
Profit befare tax

Income {ax expenses
Current tax
Deferied tax

Profit for the year (A)

Cther Comprehensive Incame
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurements of post- employment benefit obligatiens {net)
(Refer note 8)

Other Comprehensive iIncome for the year (B)

Total Comprehenslve Income for {he year (A+B)
Earnings per equity share: (Face value of Rs. 10 each)

-Basic {Rupees)
-Diluted (Rupees)

Significant accounting paolicies
Notes to financial statements

The accompanying noles are an integral par of these financial statemants.

Rupees in Lakhs

Note Year ended Year ended
No March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
18 162,555 170,672
319 3.036 778
165,591 171,448
88,478 1,235
320 3113 3,065
KWy | 32,600 34,809
34 &3.2 a3 73
122 10,458 10,079
135,738 130,256
29,853 32,182
10 6,390 8,866
10 100 4170
23,363 21158
{74) (23)
{74) {23)
23,289 21,133
9 1566.25 1.418.27
9 156,63 141 82
2
110 23



Vidarbha Industries Pawer Limited
Notes to the financial stalements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2018

As per our altached Report cf even date
For Pathak H.D. &Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 107783 W

Vishal D.Shah Shrikant D Kulkarni
Partner Director
Membership No. 119303 DIN 05136399

Place. Mumbat
Date' April 18, 2018

Rashna Hoshang Khan
Director
DIN 06928148

Suresn Haribhau Joshi
Director
DIN 07143407

Mantu Kumar Ghosh
Chief Finance Officer

Sayli K. Dabholkar
Company Secretary and Manager
Membership No, A43638

Place: Mumbai
Date: April 18, 2018
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Vidarbha Industries Power Limited
Notes to tive financial statemenis as of and for the year ended March 31, 2018

As per our attached Repoit of even date
For Pathak H.D. & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 107783 W

Vishal D.Shah Shrikant D Kulkarni
Partner Director
Membership No. 119303 DIN 05136399

Place Mumbai
Date: Aprit 18, 2018

Rashna Hoshang Khan
Director
DiN 06928148

Suresh Haribhau Joshi
Director
DiN 07143407

Mantu Kumar Ghosh
Chief Finance Ofiicer

Savyli K. Dabholkar
Company Secretary and Manager
Membership No. A43638

Place: Mumbat
Dste Apnit 18, 2018



Vidarbha industries Powor Limited
Gash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2018

(A)

(8)

(©

Cash flow fram/{used in) Operating Activities

Net Profit befure tax
Adjustsd for :
Inlerest and oiher finance cosl
Depreciation
Unrealised loss on foreign exchange fluctyation (nct)
Interast income

Operating Profit heforo working capital changes

Changes In Working Capital:
(Incieasa)/Decreasc in non currend financlal lease receivables
(increase)/Decrease in olber non current financlal asscls
(Increase)Decregse in other non cherent assels
(Increase)/Decrease in trade receivables
(Increase)/Decrease in current financial lease receivables
(Increase)/Decraase in other current tinancial assets
(Increase)/Decrease in other current assels
Provision for gratuity 2nd Icave encashment
(increase)Dociease in inventories
Increase/ (Decrease) in current loan
Increase/ (Decrease) in trade payables
Increase/ {Decreasc) in other non current financ:al Liabilitiss
increase/ (Decrease) in other current linancial liabllities

Taxes pad {net of refunds)
Net cash gencrated from operating activitics
Cash flow from/{used In) Investing Activitics

Payment tawards Purchase of properly, plant and equipments

Purchase of invesiments

inlerest on bank and other deposits

Infer corpoiale deposits refunded by the Holding Company

Inter corporale depasits given o the Holding Company

Inter corporete depasits given to Fellow Subsidiary

Margin Money / Deposits for a period of more than three moaths

Net cash used in invostlng activities

Cash flow from/(used tn) financing Activities
Proceeds from lang lerm borrawings
Repayment of fang lerm borrowings
Proceeds from short lermn borrawings
Repayment of short lerm boriowings
Interest z2nd other finance cost paid

Net cash used in financing actlivities

Net Increase/(decrease) in Cash and Cash eguivalents {A+B+C)

Cash and Cash cquivalents al the beginning of the year:
Bank Balance - Current Account

Cash and Cash aqulvalents at the end of the year:
Bank 8atance - Current Account
Deposit accounls

Rupees in lakhs

Year anded
March 31, 2018

Year ended
March 31, 2017

29,852 32,192
33,600 34.809
B89 78
1,175 1,538
(3¢2) (464)
64,376 63,153
16,418 15,972
(261) (14)
4,258 (1.140)
(59,777) (19,104)
(733} (537)
1,584 2,045
(2,165} 12.431
32 152
3,310 4,093
277 1.208
3,742 {6,903)
285 54
685 1,427
(33,358} 0,684
(6.228) (1.899)
24,791 75,938
{458} 2,585
(24) -
(1,481) 281
48,288 68,225
(7,643) (79.620)
{4,000) (15.000)
4,282 31
38.987 (23,499)
- 16,080
{30,443) (30,819)
- 1.510
{306} (3.567)
(32,347) (34,541)
(63,697) {48,337)
61 4103
4,801 636
597 4.801
4,265 -
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Vidarbha Industries Power Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

1)

2)

General information

Vidarbha Industries Power Limited (‘lhe Company") is a subsidiary of Reliance Power Limiled. The Caompany has been
sel up as a special purpose vehicle to develop and operate 600 (300X2) mega watt coal based power project at Butibon
Industrial area near Nagpur, Maharashira.

The registered office of the Company Is localed at H Block, 1 Floor, Dhitubhai Ambani Knowledge City, Thane Belapur
Road. Kaparkhaime, Navi Mumbai, Maharashtra — 400710.

These finansial stalements were authorised far issue by the board of directors on April 18, 2018,

Significant accounting palicies and critical accounting estimates and judgements:

2.1 Basis of preparation, measurement and significant accounting policies

(a)

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are sct out below. These
palicies have been consistently applied lo all ihe years presented, unless otherwise slated.

Basis of preparation
Compliance with Ind AS

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (“ind
AS") nolified under the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and relevant provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act"). The policies set out below have been consistently applied during the year
presented.

Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented In ‘Indian Rupees', which is the Company’s [unctional custency. All amounts
are rounded to the nearest lakhs, unless otherwise stated.

Historical cost convention

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the following:
+ Cerlain financial assets and financial liabilities at fair vaiue;

« Defined benefit plans — plan assets that are measured al fair value;

Falr value measurement

Fair value is the price hal would be received 1o sell an assel or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between markel participants at the measurement dale. The Company uses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the
use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assels and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement as a whote:

+  Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusied) markel prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

»  Level 2 — Valualion technigues for which the lowest level inpul thal is significant 1 the fair value measurement
is directly or indirectly observable

+ Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
is unobservable

Current vis-a-vis non-current classification

The assets and liabilities reported in the balance sheet are classified on a “current/non-current basis®. Current
assets, which include cash and cash equivalents, are assets that are intended to be realized, sold or consumed
during the normal operating cycle of the Company or in the 12 monihs following the balance sheel date; current
liabilities are liabilities that are expected to be seitled during the normal operating cycle of the Company or within the
12 months following the close of the financial year. The deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-
current assels and liabilities.



Vidarbha Industries Power Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018 (Continued)

{b) Recent accounting pronouncements

Standards issued but not yet effective
Appendix B to Ind AS 21, Foreign currency transactlons and advance consideration:

On March 28, 2018, Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA") has notified the Companies(indian Accounting
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2018 containing Appendix B {o Ind AS 21, Foreign currency transactions and
advance consideration which clarifies the date of the fransaction for the purpose of determining the exchange rate
to use on initial recognition of the related assel, expense or income, when an entity has received or paid advance
consideration in a foreign currency.

The amendment will come into force from April 1, 2018. The Company is evalualing the requirements of the
amendment and the impact on the financial stalements is being evaluated.

Ind AS 115- Revenue from Contract with Customers:

On March 28, 2018, Minisiry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA™) has notified the ind AS 115, Revenue from Contract wilh
Cusiomers. The core principle of the new standard is that an entity should recognize revenue to depict the transfer
of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideralion o which the enlily expacts
to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. Further the new standard requires enhanced disclosures
about the nature, amount, timing and uncerlainty of revenue and cash flows arising from the entity’s contracls with
customers.

The Company is evaluating the requirements of the amendment and the impacl on the financial statements is being
evaluated.

{c} Property, plant and equipment (PPE):

llems of properly, plant and eguipment are stated at cost which includes capitalised borrowing cost, less
depreciation and impairment loss, if any. Cost includes expendiiuce Ihat is directly attribulable to Ihe acquisition of
the items. Subsequent costs are included in the assel’s carrying amount or recoghised as a separale assel, as
appropriale, only when il is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company
and the cost of the ilem can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounied for as a
separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profil or loss
during the reporling period in which they are incurred.

Expenditure incurred on assets which are not ready for their intended use comprising direct cost, related incidental
sxpenses and attributable borrowing cost are disclosed under Capital Work-in-Progress.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value:

Depreciation on PPE is provided lo {hve exient of depreciable amount on Straight Line Wethod (S1.M) based on
usetul lives of the following assets as prescribed in Part C of Schedule It to the Companies Act, 2013.

Particulars Estimated useful lives
Buildings 60 years
Motor vehicles 8 years
Office Equipment 5 Years
Computers 3 Years
Fumiture & Fixures 10 Years
Plant & Equipment 15 Years

Eslimated uselul lives, residual values and depreciation methods are reviewed annually, taking into account
commercial and technological obsolescence as well as normal wear and teer and adjusted prospectively., if
appropriate.

(d) Intangible assets

Intangible Assets are staled al cosl of acquisifion net of recoverable taxes less accumulated amortization / depletion
and impairment loss, if any, The cost comprises of purchase price, borrowing costs and any cost direclly attributable
{o biinging the asset 1o its working condilion for the infended use.



Vidarbha Industries Power Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018 (Continued)

(e)

(f)

(9)

Expenditure incurred on acquisition of intangible assets which are nol ready o use al the reporling date is disclosed
under "intangible assets under development".

Amortisation

Amortisation is charged on a straight-line basis over estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and
amontisation method are reviewed at the end of each annual reporting period, with the effect of any changes in the
estimate being accounted on a prospective basis.

Compuler software is amontised over an estimated useful life of 3 years. [nlangible assets include expendilure
incurred for laying pipeline towards additional water supply. As the pipeline is estimated 10 be used over the fife of
the project. the cost incurred towards righl is amontised over the term of the power purchase agreement.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets which are subject to deprecialion or amortisation are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicale that the carrying amounl may not be recoverable. An impairmeni loss is recognised for the
amount by which Ihe assel’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset's fair value less cosis of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assels (cash-generating units). Non-finangial assets

other than goodwill that suffered impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each
reporling period.

Trade Recelvable

Trade receivables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured al amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less provision for impairment.

Financial instruments

Afinancial instrument is any conlract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability ar equity
instruments of another entity,

i. Classification

The Company classifies its financial assets in {he following measurement categories:

+ those to be measured subsequently at fair value {either through other compreheansive income or through
profit or loss) and

¢ those measured af amortised cosl.

The classification depends on the Company’'s business model for managing the financial assels and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income.

The Company reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for managing those
assels changes.

1R Measurement

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction ¢osts that are directly attributable to the acquisition of
the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are
expensed in profit or loss

Debt instruments

Subsequen! measurement of debt instruments depends oh the Company’s business model for managing the
asset and the cash flow characteristics of the assel. There are three measurement categories into which the
Company classifies its debt instruments:



Vidarbha Industries Power Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018 {Continued)

Amorntised cost

Assels that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest are measured al amortised cost. A gain or loss on a debt investiment that is
subsegquently measured at amortised cost is recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised or
impaired. Inlerest income from {hese financial assets is included in other income using the effective interest
rate method.

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

Assels that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for sc¢lling the financial assels, where the
assels' cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at FVOC! Movements in
lhe carrying amount are {aken through OCI, except for the recognilion of impairment gains or losses, interest
revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss. When
the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in QCI is reclassified
from other equity to profit or loss and recognised in other gains / (losses). Interest income {rom these financial
assels is included in other income using the effective interest rate method.

Fair value through profit ar toss (FVTPL)

Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at FVIPL. A gain or loss on a
debl invesimenl that is subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss is recognised in profit or loss
in the perlad in which it arises. Inferes! income trom these financial assets is included in other income.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expecled credit losses associated with ifs assets
carried at amortised ¢ost. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables only, the Company applies the simplified approach permitted by tnd AS 105 Financial
Instruments, which requires expected lifetime losses lo be recognised from initial recognition of 1he
receivables.

Derecognition of financial assets
Afinancial assel is derecognised only when:

+ The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or
» Retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, bul assumes a contractual
abligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

Where the entily has transferred an asset, the Company evaluales whether il has transferred substantially afl
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assel. In such cases, the financial assel is derecognised.
Where the entity has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assel, the
financial assel is not derecognised. Where {he entily has neither transferred a financial asset nor relains
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assel, the financial assel is derecognised if the
Company has not relained contiol of the financial asset. Where the Company retains control of the financial
asset, Ihe asset is continued to be recognised to the extent of continuing involvement in the financial asset.

Income recognition
Interest income

Interest income from debt instruments is recognised using the effective interest rate method. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounis estimated fulure cash receipts through the expected lifs of the
financial asset fo the gross carrying amount of a financial asset. When calcutating the effeclive interest rate, the
company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financiat instrument
(lor example, prepayment, exiension, call and similar oplions) but does not consider the expected credit losses.

Dividend

Dividends are recognised in profit or loss only when the right to receive payment is established, it is probable
that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Company, and the amount of the
dividend can be measured reliably.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018 (Continued)

vi.

Offsetting Financial instruments

FFinancial assefs and fiabilities are offset and the net amount is reparted in the balance sheel where there is

a legally enforceable right o offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to sellle on a net basis or
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on
future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency
or bankruptey of the Company or the counterparty.

(h} Contributed equity

)

Ordinary shares are classified as equily. Incremenial costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options
are shown in equity as a deduction, net of lax, from the proceeds.

Financial liabilities

fii.

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equily instruments issued by the company are classified as either financial liabilities or as equily
in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definition of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interast in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabililies.

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and
payables, net of direclly atiributable frensaction costs.

The Company's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank
overdrafts.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabililies depends on their classification, as described below

Borrowings: Borrowings are subsequently carried al amortised cost; any difference between the proceeds
(net of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the statement of profit and loss over
the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method,

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the
extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred
until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the
facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a pre-payment for liquidity services and amortised over
the period of the facility to which it relales

Trade and other payable: These amounts represenis obligations to pay for goods or services that have
been acquired in the ordinary course of business from suppliers. These payable are classified as current
liabilities if payment is due within one year or less otherwise {hey are presented as non-current liabililies.
Trade and other payables are subsequently measured at amontised cost using the effective inlecest
method.

Derecognition

Borrowings are removed from the balsnce sheel when the obligation specified in ihe caniract is
discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that
has been exlinguished or {ransferred (o another parly and the consideration paid, including any non-cash
assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profil or loss as other gains/{losses).

When an existing financial iabilily is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different
ferms, or the terms of an existing liability are substanlially modified, such an exchange or moditicafion is
treated as the deracognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in
the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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Q)

(k)

Borrowings are classified as current liabililies unless the Company has an unconditional righ{ lo defer
selllement of the kability for at feast 12 months after the reporting period. Where there is a breach of a
material provision of a long-term loan arrangemeni on or before the end of the reporting period with the
effecl that the liability becomes payable on demand on the reporting date, the entity does nol classify the
liability as current, if the lender agreed, after the reporling period and belore the approval of the finsncial
slalements for issue, not fo demand payment as a conseguence of the breach,

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing cosls that are direcily allributable 1o the acquisilion, construction or
production of a gqualifying asset are capitalised during the period of lime that is required 1o complete and
prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assefs are assels thal necessarily 1ake a
substantial period of time 1o get ready for their intended use or sale.

Investiment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
Provigions, Contingent Llabllitles and Contingent Assets
Provisions:

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or construciive obligafion as a result of past
events; it is prabable (hal an outflow of resocurces will be required to settle the obligation; end the amount has been
reliably estimated.

Provisions are measured at the presenl value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to selile
the present obligation at the end of the reporling period. The discaunt rale used to determine the present value is a
pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and ihe risks specific lo the liabilily.
The increase in the provision due to the passage of lime is recognised as interest expense,

Contingent liabilities:

Contingenl liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence  of
which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the conlrol of the Company or a present obligation that srises from past events where it is either not probable
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made, is termed
as contingent liability.

Contingent Assets:

A contingenl asset is disclosed, where an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Forelgn currency translations
i.  Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary
econoniic environment in which the Company operates ('the functional currency’). The financial statements are
presented in ‘Indian Rupees' (Rs.), which is the Company's funclional and the Company's presentation
currency.

ii, Transactions and balances

@iy Foreign currency transactions are franslated into the functronal currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions.

(i) Al exchange diflerences arising on reporiing of foreign currency monetary items al rales different from those
al which they were initially recorded are recognised in the Statement of Profil and Loss.
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(i) Inrespect of foreign exchange differences arising on restatement or seftlement of long term foreign currency
monetary items, the Company has availed (he option available in Ind AS 101 to continue the policy adopted for
accounting for exchange differences arising from translation of long-terim foreign currency monetary items
outstanding as on March 31, 2016, wherein:

« Foreign exchange differences on account of depreciable assel, is adjusled in the cost of depreciable assat
and would be depreciated over the balance life of assel.

* In other cases, foreign exchange diffcrence is accumulated in "foreign currency monetary item translation
difference account” and amortised over the balance period of such long term asset / liabilities.

(iv) Non-monetary items denominaled in foreign currency are stated al the rates prevailing on the date of the
transactions / exchange rate at which transaction is actually effected.

(m) Revenue recognition

(n)

The Company recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured at fair value of
consideration raceived or receivable, it is probable that future economic benefils will flow to 1he entity and specific
crileria have been met for each of the Campany's aclivities, as described below, The Company bases its estimate
on historical results, tzking into considerafion the type nf transactions and specifics of each arrangement.

i Sale of energy

Revenue from sale of energy is recognized on an accrual basis as per the tariff rates approved by
Maharashira Electricity Regufatory Commission (MERC) in accordance with the provisions of Pawer Purchase
Agreement (PPA) with Reliance Infrastructure Limited (Rinfra). Further, revenue js also recognised lowards
truing up of fixed charges and fuel adjustment charges as per the applicable MERC (Mulli year {ariff)
Regulations.

ii. Lease income

Revenue from sale of energy referred to above includes fixed charges considered as mininwum lease
paymenls in accordance wilh appendix ‘C" 10 Ind AS-17 '‘Delermining whether an arrangement conlains a
lease’, which is appostioned between finance income and reduction of finance lease receivables and finance
Income is disclosed as ‘Finance Income" under "Other Operating Revenue” (Refer note 2 1 (n) below).
Revenue towards truing up of fixed charges is recognized as operating income in the Statement of Profit and
Loss in the year of truing up. In case of difference between the revenue recognized based on provisional taritf
order/petitions filed and final {ariff order, minimum lease payments is adjusted to the extent of difference for
balance period of lease to arrive at revised internal rate of return based an which minimum lease paymenis is
apportioned between finance income and reduction of finance lease receivables.

ii.  Late payment surcharge

The surcharge on late paymentoverdue {rade receivables for sale of energy is recognised when no
significani uncentainty as to measurement or collectability exists.

{eases

The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement
gl the inceplion of the lease. The arrangement is (or contains) a lease if fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent

oh lhe use of a specilic asset or assels and the arrangement conveys a right {0 use the asset or assets, even if that

right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

These leases are analysed based on the situations and indicators set out in ind AS-17 in order to determine whether
they constitute operating leases or finance leases.

A finance lease is defined as a lease which transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidentsal to the
ownership of the refated asset 1o the lessee. All leases which do not comply with the definition of a finance lease are
classified as operaling leases.
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(o)

The following main faclors are considered by the Company to assess if a lease transfers substantially all the risks
and rewards incidental to ownership: whether

(iy 1he lessor transfers ownership of the asset to the lessee by the end of the lease term;

(i the lessee has an option to purchase the asset and if so, the conditions applicable to exercising that
option;

(iii) the lease lerm is for the major part of the econonmic life of the asset;

(iv) the assel is of a highly specialized nature; and

(v} the preseni value of minimum lease payments amounts 1o al leasi subslantially all of the fair value of Ihe
leased assel.

As alessor (Finance lease)

Appendix “C" of Ind AS 17 deals with the identification of services and lake-or-pay sales or purchasing contracts that
do not take the legal form of a lease but convey righis {o customers / suppliers to use an asset or a group of assets
in return for a payment or a series of fixed payments. Contracls meeting these criteria are identified as eifher
operaling leases or finance leases. In the later case, a finance lease receivable is recognized fo reflect the financing
deemed to be granted by the Group where it is considered as acling as lessor and ils customers as lessees.

The Company has assessed tinance lease with respec! (o the terms of PPA, where the agreement conveys to the
purchaser of the energy an exclusive right to use generaled energy.

In case of finance leases, where assets are leased out under a finance lease, the amount recagnized under finance
lease receivables is an amount equal to the net investment in the lease.

Minimum lease payment made under finance lease is apportioned between the finance income and the reduction of
the oulstanding receivables. The finance income is allocated to each period during the lease terms so as {o produce
a constanl periodic rate of inferest on the remaining balance of the lease receivable.

Employee benefits

Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12
months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are recognised in respect of
employees' services up to he end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid
when the liabilities are setiled. The liabilities are presented as current employee benelit obligations in the balance
sheet.

Other long-term employee benefit obligations

The liabililies for earned leave and sick leave are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of
the period in which the employees render the relaled seqvice, They are therefore measured as the present value of
expected fulure payments to be made in respect of services provided by emplayees up to the end of the reporting
period using the projected unit credit method The benefils are discounted using the market yields at the end of the
reporting period that have ferms approximaling to the terms of the related obligation. Remeasurements as a result of
experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumplions are recognised in profit or loss.

The obligafions are presented as current liabifities in the balance sheel if the entily does not have an unconditional
righl lo defer seltlement for at least twelve months afier the reporting period, regardless ol when the aclual
seftlement is expected to ocour.
Post employee abligations
The Company operates the following post-employment schemes:

- defined benefit plans such as gratuity

- defined contribution plans such as provident fund.
- Superannuation fund
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(p)

Gratuity obligations

The liability or assel recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuily plans is the present value
of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reponting period less the fair value of plan assets. The delined
benefit obligation 1s calculated annually by actuaries using the projected unit credit method.

The preseni value of the defined benefit obligation denominatled in (Rupees) is determined by discounting the
eslimated fulure cash oulflows by reference o market yields at the end of the reporing period on government bonds
that have terms approximaling to the terms of Lhe relaled obligation.

The net inferest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate 1o the net balance of the defined benefit obligation
and the fair value of plan assefs. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in the Statement of Profit and
Loss.,

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in acluarial assumplions are
recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income. They are included in retained
garnings in the slalement of changes in equily and in the balance sheet.

Changes in the present value of (he defined benelit obligation resulting from plan amendmenls or curtailmenis are
tecognised immediately in profi or loss as past service cost.

Defined contribution plans

The Company pays provident fund contributions to publicly administered provident funds as per local regulations.
The Company has no futher payment obligations once the coniributions have been paid. The contributions are
accounied for as defined coniribution plans and the confribulions are recognised as employee benefit expense
when they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent tha{ a cash refund or a reduction
in the future payments is available.

Superannuation fund

Certain employees of the Company are participants in a defined contribution plan. The Gompany has no furlher
obligations to the plan beyond its manthly coniributions which are conlributad 16 a trust fund, the corpus of which is
invested with Reliance Life Insurance Company Limited.

Income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the {ax payable on the current period's taxable income based on
the applicable income lax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities
altributable to temporary dtffarences and to unused tax losses.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end
of the reporting period in the countries where the Company operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates posilions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is
subject to interpretation. | establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to
the lax authorilies.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the balance sheet methad, on temporary differences arising belween
the tax bases of assels and liabilifies and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. However, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill, Deferred income tax is also nof
accounted for if il arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a frapsaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss). Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of
the reporing period ang are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is reslised or the
deferred income tax liabilily is settled,

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible {emporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is
probable (hal fulure taxable amounts will be available 1o ulilise those temporary differences and losses.,



Vidarbha industries Power Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018 (Contlinued)

(q)

{n

(s)

)

(v

Deferred tax assels and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and
liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same (axation authority. Curreni tax assets and {sx
liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enfarceable right {0 offset and infends either to seltle on a nel
basis, o1 to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred lax is recognised in profit or lass, except to the exleni that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In lhis case, 1he lax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or diractly in equily, respectively.

Cash and cash squivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand,
demand deposits with banks. short-term balances (with an original mslurity of three months or less from date of
acquisition), highly liguid investments that are readily convertible info known amounts of cash and which are subject
to insignificant risk of changes in value.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculaled by dividing:
- the profit altribulable to owners of the Company
- by the weighted average number of equity shares outsianding during the financial year

Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to taks into
account:
- the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potenlial equity
shares, and
- the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming the
conversion of all dilutive potenlial equity shares.

Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for {he effects of
transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash
flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated based an the available
information.

Segment Reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating
Decision-Maker. The Chief Operating Decision-Maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the Chief Executive Officar and the Chief Financial
Officer that makes stralegic decisions.

Invenlories
Inventories of {ools, stores, spare parts, consumable supplies and fuel are valued at jower of weighted average
cost, which includes all non-refundable duties and charges incurred in bringing the goods to lheir present

location and condition, and net realisable value after providing for obsolescence and other losscs.

In case of coal stock, the measured stock is based on a verification process adopted and the variation between
measured stock and book slock is charged 1o Statement of Profif and Loss.



Vidarbha Industries Power Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018 {Continued)

2.2 Critical accounting estimates and judgements

(a)

(b}

()

(d}

(e)

Preparalion of the Financial Statemenis under Ind AS requires management to take decisions and make esfimales
and assumptions that may impact the value of revenues, cosls, asseis and liabilities and the related disclosures
concerning the items involved as well as contingent assels and habilities al the balance sheet date. Eslimates and
judgements are conlinually evaluated and are based on hislorical experience ang olher faclors, including
expectations of future evenls that are believed {o be reasonable under the circumstances.,

The Company make eslimates and assumptions concerning fhe future. The resulting accounting eslimates will, by
definition, seldom egual the related aclual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a materia! adjustmeni to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below:

Useful lives of assets and plants given on finance lease classified as finance lease receivables

The Company has independently estimated the useful fife of properly, plant and equipment given on finance lease
based on the expected wear and tear, industry frends efc. in actual, the wear and tear can be different. It is possible
that the estimates made based on existing experience are different {n the actual cutcomes within the next financial
period and could cause a matenal adjustment to the unrealised residual value of finance lease receivables (Refsr
note 3.3(h)).

Impalrment of assets

Atthe end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its intangible sssets and the
unguaranteed residual value of assets given on lease to determine whether there Is any indication thaf those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exisls, the recoverable amount of the asset / residual value
is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generaling unit is determined based on value-in-use calculations
prepared on the basis of management's assumptions and estimates.

Defined benefit obligations

The present value of the defined benefit obligations depends on a number of factors that are determined on an
actuarial basis using a number of assumptions. The assumptions used in determining the net cost (income) for post
employments plans include the discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions will impact the carrying amount of
such obligations.

The Company determines the appropriate discount rate at the end of each year. This is the interest rate that should
be used 1o determine the present value of estimaled fulure cash oulflows expected 16 be required 1o sellle the
defined benefit obligations. In delermining the appropriate discaunt rate, the Company considers the interest rafes of
govermnment bonds of malurity approximating the terms of (he related plan kability. (Refer Note 6)

Income taxes

There are transactions and calculalions for which the ultimaie 1ax determination is uncertain and would gel finalized
on completion of assessment by tax authorities. Where the finaf lax outcome is different from the amounts that were
indlially recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made. (Refer note 10)

Deferred tax

The Company has deferred tex assets and liabilities which are expected to be realised through the Slalement of
Profit and Loss over the extended periods of time in the future. In calculating the deferred tax items, the Company is
required 1o make certain assumplions and estimates regarding ihe fulure {ax consequences attributable to
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities 2¢ recorded in the financial statements and their
tax bases. Assumptions made include the expectation that future operating performance for subsidiaries will be
constsient with historical levels of operating resuits, recoverability periods for tax loss carry forwards will nol change,
and that exisling 1ax laws and rates will remain unchanged into foreseeable future. (Refer Note 10 and 3.13)



Vidarbha Industrics Power Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018 (Continued)

(f)

(9)

Deferred tax assels are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the same can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required lo determine the
amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable
profits together with future tax planning strategies.

According to management's estimale, MAT credit balances will expire and may not be used to offset taxable
income. The Company neither has any laxable temporary difference nor any Lax planning opportunities available
thal could partly supporl the recognition of these MAT credil enfitlement as deferred tax assets. On this basis, the
Company has determined that it cannot recognise deferred tax asseis on these balances.

Fair value measurement and valuation process

The Company has measured certain assets and liabilities at fair value for financial reparting purposes. The
manageiment determines the appropriate valuation technique and inputs for fair value measurement. In estimating
the fair value, the management engages third parly qualified valuer Lo perform the valuations.

Estimates and judgements are based on historical experience and other faclors, including expectations of future
evenis that may have a financial impact on the Company and that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumsiances. (Refer Note 11)

Application of lease accounting

Significant judgement is required 1o apply lease accounting rules under Appendix “C” of Ind AS 17 "Delermining
whether an Arrangemeni contains a Lesse”. In assessing lhe applicabilily to arrangemenis enfered into by the
Company, management has exercised judgement to evaluate customer's right Lo use the underlying assels,
substance of the transaction including legally enforced arrangements and other significant terms and conditions of
the arrangement to canclude whether the arrangements meet the criteria under Appendix “G".

Classification of lease
Significant judgement has been applied by the Company in determining whether substantially all the significant risks
and rewards of ownership of the lease assets are transferred to the other entities.
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Vidarbha Industries Power Limited
Notes to the financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2018 (continued)

3.2 Intangible assets
Rupees in lakhs

; Water Supply Computer
Particulars Rights Soitware Total
Gross carrying amount
Carrying amount as at March 31, 2017 1,264 35 1.299
Additions during the period - - -
Carrying amount as at March 31, 2018 1,264 35 1,299
Accumulated amortisation as at March 31, 2017 150 6 156
Add : for the period 75 3 78
Balance as at March 31, 2018 225 9 234
Net Carrying Amount
Balance as at March 31, 2017 1,115 29 1,143
Balance as at March 31, 2018 1,038 26 1,085

Note:
1) Intangible assets are other than intemally generated.



Vidarbha Industrics Power Limited
RNoles to the financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2018 {continued)
_Rupees in lakhs
As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Noi- current Financlal assets

3.3(a} Invesiments
A Equity share ( unquoted, fully paid-up)
In joini venturz (Refer note B G) [valued at amortised cost)

2.500 (March 31, 2017. 2,600) equity snaras of Rehance Gedtharmal Power Frvale Lumiled @ @
(Fare velue of R8.10)

B Preference shares (Unguoted, (ully paid up, )’
{n fellow subsidiaries {Refer note 8 G) (valued at amoriised cost)
1,082,000 (March 31, 2017, 1,062,000) preference sharcs in Siyom Hydro Power Private 5,548 5 548
Limitco® (Face value of Rs 1 each))
Lese Provision for diminution in the value of invasiment in Ssyom Hydro Power Prvate (1,123) {1,123)
Lirited

C Governmenl Bond (Quoted) (Fair value through Prolit & Loss sccount)
14,000 (March 31, 2017. Nil) B.33% Covernment Bond of Ryjasthan Government 16 -
(Face valie of Rs, 100 each)
7.000 {Narch 31, 2017: Nil ) 8 22% Governmeant Bond of Taminadu Government i) -
{Face valua of Rs. 100 each)

4,445 4,425

@ Amount Is below the rounding off norm adapled by the compeny
Aqgregaie bodk value of unquoted Investments 4,428 4425
Aggroegate amount of quoted invasiments 23 -
Markef value of quoted Investments 22 -

'7.5% Compuisory Converilhle Redeemable Non-Cumulative Prefcrence Shares (CCRPS)

As per lerms and conditions of the investmant made in preference shares, the issucr compartes shall have a call ortion on the
CCRPS which can be exsrcised by them in one or more tranches and 1 pad or in full befare the end of sgreed fenure (20 years) of
the seid shares n case {he call option s exerased, the CCRPS shall be redeemed at an #83ue price (L.e face value 8ni premium),
The Compsny, however, shall bave an oation to canvert the GCRPS N equity shares at any time during the tenure of such CCRPS
At the end of tcnure and 1o tha extent the 19suer Companias or the share holgers tharsof have rof exeraised their opticns, the
CCRPS shall be compulsorily convered into cquity shares On conversion, in either case, each praterance share shall be converted
iMa equily shares of corresponding value {inzluding the premium applicable thereon). In case the 13suer companies deciare divident
on their equity shares, tha CCRPS wil: also be entitled to the eauity dividend in addition (a fhe coupon rale of dividend

# The shares in theae companies are carried at cas! arrived in eccordance with the terins specified in Schema of Amalgamat:on and
Arrangement sanciioned by the High Cour of Bombay on Mareh 15, 2013, (Refer note 16 )

3.3(b) Finance leasc receivabies

Flnance lcase recelvables (Refer Nole 19) 388,552 374,925

358,552 374,925

3.3(c) Other financial asscts

Advance recoverable in cash 750 750
Secunty deposits 671 410
1.421 1.180

1.4 Other non-current assels
(Unsecured, conrsiceres good)

Capital advances 596 596
Balance with statutory authorities (Incluging VAT recoverabla) 458 4718

1,064 5312
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Vidarbha lndustrles Power Limited
Nates to the financlal statemeots as of and for the year ended Maich 31, 2018 (continued)
Rupees in fakhs
Ag at
_March 31,2017

As 8t
_March 31,2018
Curront Financial assets

3.5 Inventorias

Fuel (Incivding Materigl in transit of Rs, 73 lakha (March 31, 2017  Rs. 637 lgkhs)] 673 3,863
Stores and spares 4 B50 4,969
5,623 8,822
3.8{a) Trade receivables
(Unsecured, considered goed)
Trade receivablas 122,572 62,795
{includes amount recaivables from relaled party (Refer Nofe BG (i) )
[including Rs. 19,812 Lakhs (March 31, 2017, Rs, 16,269 Lakhs) billed ir the subseguent
month] (Refer Note B8G (j))
122,672 62,796
3.6(b) Cash and cash equivalents
Balance with banks.
In eurrent aceount 597 5 801
in deposit account with original malurlty of less than three monthe 4218 -
Inters| accrued on Fixed Deposils 52 -
4,862 4.801
3.56(c) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivatenis
Depoails with original maturity of more than three moaths but nol less than twalve monhs - 4,202
Infesst acorues on Fixad Deposits - 280
. 4,572

3.6(d) Loans
(Unsceured, congidered goad)
Secunty deposits 30 3ge

Inter corporale deposiis given to reiated parlies (Refer note 8G ii } +9.000 15,000
Interest on Inter corporala deposits given to retsted parlies (Rafer note 83 ) 2113 -
Inter corporste deposit given to Ho'ding Company (Refer note 8G ii ) 136 40,781
Loans / advancss to employces 8 G
21,287 86,096
1.6(e) Current finance leege receivables
Finance lease receivabies (Reler note 18} 18,182 17,458
18,192 17,458
3.6(F} Other financial gssets
{Unsecuted, consideres gcod)
Unbilted revenue (Refer Note 8G 4 ) 6,617 8,211
6,617 8,211
3.Y Ofher current assels
{Unsecured, considered good)
Prepaid expenses 4355 510
Advance recoverabla in kind 3,162 042
3,817 1,452




Vidarbha [ndustries Power Limited
Notas to the financial statements as of and for the year endad March 31, 2018 {Continued)

3.8 Equity Share capital

3.8.1

3.8.2

3.8.3 Detalls of sharas held by hotding company and subs

Authorised ahare capital
150,000,000 (March 31, 2017; 150,009,009) equity shares of Rs,10 each

Issuad, subscribed and fully pald up share capital
1,481,626 (March 31, 2017: 1 491.626) equity shares of Rs 10 each

Reconcifiation of number of equity shares

Balance at the beginning of the year - 1,491,626 (March 31, 2017: 1,491,828) equity shares of

Rs. 10 each

Add: Issued and subsefibed during the year -Nil (March 31, 2017: Nil) cquity shares of Rs. 10

each

Balance at the end ol ihe year - 1,481,626 (March 31, 2017: 1,491 626) equity shares of Rs. 10

each

Terms / Aights atfached to equity shares

Rupees in {akhs

As at
March 31, 2018

As at
March 31, 2017

15.000 15,000
15,000 15,000
149 149
149 149
148 149
149 149

The Company has only ane class of equity shares having face value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of the equity share is anlitied to one
vole per share. In Ine event of liquidation of ihe Company, the holders of equily shares will be enlitled o receive remainming assets of the

Company, after dislribution of afl preferentisl amounts.

No. of Shares

Equlty Shares

Reliance Power Limited - 1,126,656 (March 31, 2017: 1.126,656
1,126,656) shares of Rs. 40 each

(Of the above, 1,126,650 (March 31, 2017: 1,12B,650)

shares are held by Reliance Power Liinifed, the holding

company angd 6 (March 31, 2017: 8) sheres are Jointly

held by Raliance Power Limiled and i{s nominees)

Rosa Power Supply Company Limited (subsidiary of 364,970
Reliance Fower Limilad) -

364,970 (March 31, 2017 364,970) equity shares of

Rs. 1D each

As al March 31, 2018

Percentage of
sharcholding

75.53%

24.47%

As at March 31, 2017

No. of Shates

1,126,656

364,970

Percentage of
shareholding

75.53%

24.47%

1,491,626

100%

1,494,626

100%




Vidarbha indusiries Power Limited
Notes to the financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2018 {Continued)

Other Equilty i Rupees In fakhs
As al As at
3.9 Instrumonf entirely equity in nalure March 31. 2018 March 31, 2017
Authorisad share capital
850.C0D.CO0 (Murch 31, 2017: 650,000,000) prelerence shares ¢f Rs.10 each &5 002 85,000
05,000 85,000
Preforence Share Caphal
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up
13,424,634 (Mzweh 335, 2017: 13,424,034) preference sharcs of Re.10 each 1,342 1.342
{Refa: ncie 3 4 2 below o terms)
1,342 1,342
3.9.1 Reconcllfation of numher of shares - subscribed and fully paid up
As at As at

Prefarence shares

March 11, 2018

March 31, 2017

Balance at the beginning of ihe year - 13.424 E34 (Merch 3%, 2017: 1,342 1,242
13,424 634) preference shares ¢/ Rs. 10 euch

Add’ Issued and subscrined during the year - Ni (March 34, 2017: NiL) . -
preference shareg of Re 10 each

Belance at the end of the year - 13,424,634 (March 31, 2017:

13,424,834) prefarence shares of Rs. 10 each 1,142 1,342

3.9.2 Tehms / righls pttached to shares

7.5% Compulsory Convertible Redeemable Non-Cumulative Preference 8hares |[CCRPS)

Pursuant {o {he terma of issue, The Compery shall hava a cal oplion on CCRPS which can be exercised by the Gompany in one or mare Iranches and in part
of ) tulf before the end of ugreed tenure (20 years) of the said sheres. In case the cal option is exerciscd, CCRPS aha!l bs redeemed at an ssue price {i e face
value and premiumy). The hotdars of CCRPS however, shall hava an oplian to convert CCRPS into equity shares at any hime dusing {he lenuie of such shares.
At the end of terure and 10 the exdent the Company or tha CCRPS holders have rot exerclsed their options. SCRPS shall be compulsorly converted 1nfo equity
shares. On conversion, in eilher case, each CCRPS shall be converled imo one fully paid equdy share of Rs. 10 sach a1 a premium of Rs. 990 share. if during
1hs tenure of CCRPS, {he Company declares equily dividerd, CCRPS holders shal also be enfilled to dividand on theu shuies af the same rate as the equily
dividend and this cividend will be over and above the caupon rale of 7.5%. These prefaranca shares shall conlinue o te noa cumulative.

Details of shares heid by holding company and subsidiary of holding company

As ot March 11, 2018 As at March 31, 2017

No. of Shares Percentage of No. of Shares Percentage af
Prafarence Shares sharehalding shaceholding
Refiance Pawer Limiled - 9,404,432 (Mzreh 31, 2017 9,404,432) shares 9,404,432 70.05% 9,404 432 70.05%
of Rs 10 each
Rosa Power Supply Company Limiled (subsidiary of Refiance Powcr 4,120,202 29.95% 4,020,202 29 5546
Limited) - 4,020,202 (March 31, 2017 4,020,202) preference shares cf
Rs 10 each, -
13,424,634 100% 13,424,634 100%




Vidarbha Jnduslries Power Limited
Notes o the financial statementa ag of and for lhe year ended March 31, 2018 [continued)

3.10.1
3.10.2
3.10.3
3.10.4
3.10.4
3.102

3.10.3

3.10.4

Reservs snd surplius

Balance at the end ol the year

Capnal reserve

Secundes premium account
Foreign carrency monefary item franglation differcnce account

Relained eamings
Total

Capital resceve (erisen pursuant to scheme of amalgamation) (Refer note 17)
Securlties premiuin account

Foreign currency monetary itcm transiation difference scepunt

Balance at the beginning of Ihe year

Add: Addihior during the year

Lass: Amortisation auring the yesr

Balance gt the end of the yeer

Retzlinad earnings

Bzlence at the beglnning of the year

Profi 10: the year

Less' Remeesurement of Post employement benetit obligation

Balance ai the end of the year

Nature and purpose of other raserves:

a) Capital reserve
Capitel reserve has arisea pursaant fo lhe scheme of amalgamation on account of nel asaets taken over from Rehance Fuel

Resources Limiled. {Refar note 16)
b) Securties premium recount

Rupees in lakhs

_ March 31, 2018

As a3t

_March 31, 2017

11,940 14,040
147,176 147 176
(1,057) (2.075)
30,663 7,373
188,722 164 414
11,040 11,940
147,176 147178
(2 D75} (4,340}
(40} 882
1,058 1,383
(1,067) (2,076)
7.374 {13,780}
23.363 21,156
(74) (23)
30,663 7,374
188,722 164,414

Securities premiom agcount is ereated 15 record premium receivad on issue of shares. The Reserve s ulitised in accordance with the

provisicn of the Companies Acl. 2013,
b) Foreign currency monetary ltem translation difference accoont

The Company has cpled ta cartinye the Pievious GAAR policy for aceounting of foreign exchiange differences on long term monetary
iterns. This Reserve represents foreign exchange accumulated on long term monetary ilems which are for other than depresiable
assels. The sams 18 emortized over the balance period of such long tenm monetary essets (Refer nefe 15)



Vidarbha industries Power Limited
Motes to the financial statements as of and for the year anded March 31, 2018 {continuad)
Rupees in lakhs
As at As at
March 31,2018 March 31, 2017

Nan-current linancial liabliltles
311 Non-current borrowings

At amonised cosl

Secured

Tenr: loans,
Rupee loans rom banks 187,521 211,403
foreign currency loans from banks 13,918 27,745

7211433 239,148

3.11(a)(i) Natura of securily for term {oens

Ruapee louns from banks of Rs. 188 416 iakns (March 31, 2017: 196,861) is secured / to be secured by first charge on all the
immovable andg movable essets and Infangible asset of the Compeny on & pari zassu basis and pledge of 5195 of the equity share

a)} capital of the Company

b) Rupae loans from bank of Rs, 4,000 fakhs (March 31, 2017 12,000) is secured by a residual charge on all the moveable fixad aaseds
and current assels of ihe Company.

) Rupsee loans from bank of Rs 20,000 fakhs (March 31, 2017: 20,000) is secured by firsi charges on all movable and immovable
assels on parmi passu basls

d) Foreign Currency Loans fram banks of Rs. 27,876 lakhs (March 31, 2017 41,882 ) is scoured / to ba securad by first change on all the
Immovatie end movatie assels of the Company on pari passu bazis and tiedge of 51% of the equity share capitel of the Company.

¢) The Holding Company hag given financial commitments / guaraniee o the lenders of the Company (refer note 8G (ii)).
fy Current maturities of long ferm barrowings hava been classified as other currenl financizl §ablities (refer note 3.14 (c) )

3.11(a){ll) Terms of repayment and Interest

&) The rupee foans from banks of Rs 1RE 416 lakhs (March 31, 2017; 186,98%) I repayable in 56 structured guarlerly instalments
cuommencing from June 30, 2015 and carry an average interest rale of 11.42% per annum.

b) Foreign currency ferm loan 1s repayatie in 28 aqus! quarterly instatiments commencing from June 30, 2013 and carmes en inleresl
rate of USD three month LIBOR plus 4 80% pe: srnum, payabla on a quartery basis.

c) Rupce loan Irom bank Rs 4,000 {akhs (March 31, 2017 12,000 1akhs) is repaydle in 10 querterly installments commeneing from June
30, 2318 and carry an interaat rate of 10 57 % p.a

d) Rupee loans from banks af Rs 20,000 lakhs (March 31, 2017: 20,000 lakbs) Is repayble in 48 slructured quartarly installments
commencing (rom June 30, 2018 and carry an intevest rate of 10.25 % p.&.

3,11(=)}ii) The amortised cost disclosed above is nel of incidental cosl of borrowings aggregaling of Rs. 1,482 takhs (March 21, 2017 Rs.1,058
lakhs)

3.12 Noa-current provisions

Provision fo: gratuity (Refer note 8) 182 186
Provision for leave encashmenl (Refer note 6) 320 273
s12 469

3.13 Deferred tax liabililies

Grass deferred tax fiability on Sepreziatian due to timing difference 75,038 73.035
Less- Recoverable from benefic:arles (23,505) (?1602)

51,433

- 61,603 51433



Vidarbha Industries Powcer Limited
Notes to the financlal stafciments as of and for (he year ended March 39, 2018 (cantinued)

3.14(3)

J.14{ai)

3.14(a)iy

3.44(h)

3.14(c)

3,15

3147

Current financial lfabilitles
Borrowings

Securcd
Work:g Capitsi Loana

Nature of Security for Shonl term borrowings

Rupees in lakhs

As at
March 34, 2618

Asg at

March 31, 2017

50025 50,331
50,026 50,331

Cash credit lacilihes which are repayable on demand I1s secured pari passu slong wilh tenn Inan lenders ay first charge on all the
Imimcvabie and movable essets 2nd Intangible asset of the Company on a pari p2ssu bas’s and pledge of 51% of the equity share

canilal of the Company

Interest
Cash Credit Faciity casry an everage rate of interexst of 11 33% per annum,

Tradc payables
Tola! Quislanding dues of micso enlerprisss and amall enlerprises
Tota! Outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enlerprises and amall enterprises

Othcer linancial liabilitles

Gurrent maturities of lcng-term borrowings (Refer note 3.11 (3) (iti))

inlerest ccrued ang duce on Larrowings

Inlerest accrued bLt not due on borrowings

Securily deposits recaived

Creditors for capital expanditure (Refer note 8G (li) and nole 17)

Retention money payable

Creditors for supplies 2na services (Refer note BG (i) and note 17)

Others”

‘(nchides Gram panchayal tax, witer charges and gther miscellaneous peyables)

Other current liahilities

Olher Liabiiles

Provisions

Provisian for [eave encashmenl (Keler note 6)

Current tax llabilitics
Pravision for income tax [Nel of advance tax Rs.Nil lakhs (Merch 31, 2017: Rs,13. 191
lakha) {Refer Note 10)

3,844

57
3,844 57
27.37% 30,459

257 -

317 437
44 26
2.9087 2,811
1,017 492
3,485 3,223
976 1,008
16468 36,623
386 100
366 100
7 17
78 17
5,363 5159

5363 5180




Vidarkha Industrise Power Limited

Notes 4o the financisl stalements as of and for the year ended Marsch 33, 2018 (conunued?

3.18

3.18

3.20

3.22

Revenue fram operalions

Sale of energy Lincluding sals o relaled peily (Refer Note 8G (I} and 20
Other oparating revenues;

-Finance Incama

- Interest from customer on delayed payment (Refer Note 8G (1)

aiher Income

Interest Income:
Sank deacsils
Inter-oorporate deposits (Rafer Note 85 (1))
Others

Cliver Non oparsting rncome

Emplayas benelit expensa

Sslanes, banus and other allowances

Coniribubon lo provigent fund and othcr funds (Refer note 6)
Graluity and leave enzashment [Refer nole B)

Senff wailare expenses

Finance cosy

Interest on:

fRupee tarm lcans

Fareign eurrency 1ouns

Working capital loans
Amor:zation of barrswing cost
Other finance cherges

Generatlon, administration and clher expenses

Slores and &pares consumed
Rent expenset [Including rend to ralsied nacty (refer nole 3G {3
Repars And maiftenance,
Plenl end Machinasy
Others
Legal anit profesmionel charges {(Irclucing shared service charges) (Reter Note 8G ()
Diracior's sitling fees
Travelling and convcyance
Hales and laxes
Insurance including insurance charges to related pany (refer nole 8G (i)
Water charges
Loss on szle of hixed assals
Loss on foreign exchange fluctiaticns (el
Expenditura tmyards cotporate sociai responsibylily (Refter note 21)
Amortizalion of Forcign currency menatary itern lranslation dilference reserve
Miscellanecus expenses

Aupaes In lakhis

Year ended
parch 31, 20148

Year endad
March 31, 2047

113,100 115413
45 359 58,408
4 096 1,650
162,555 170,672
177 335
2,34E -
185 128
345 312
2,036 7?6
2,896 2,727
114 12
8 164
BY a2
3,113 1.055
24,874 26,135
2,45¢ 2,817
5,429 5,146
1,038 408
33,600 34,802
2017 1,792
217 143
4 4486 1.308
447 217
1,024 i.g10
6 5
240 197
222 360
604 456
1,587 1,586
77 166
555 264
1,058 1383
940 185
N 10,458 _ 10,078



Vidarbha Indusiries Power Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018 (Continued)
4) Contingent Liabilities And Commitments

The Company has committed / guarantced financial suppori for payment in respect of non-fund based facililies of
Rs. 20,000 {akhs (March 31, 2017 Rs. 20,000 lakhs) granted {o ils halding company. Future cash flows in respect of
the above matter can only be deterniined based an various uncertain faclors.

Estimaled amount of contracts (net of capital advance) remaining to be executed on capital account and not
provided for is Rs. 22 lakhs (March 31, 2017: Rs 1,628 lakhs).

5) Details of Remuneration to Auditors:

Rupees in lakhs

Payment to Auditors
Year ended Year ended
Mareh 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

a) As Auditors
Audit Fees 45 76
b) In other Capacities

Cerifleation Fees @ 1
Oul —of-pockel expenses @

Total Payment to Auditors 45 78

@ Amount is below the rounding off norm adopted by the company.

6) Employees benefit obligation:
The Company has classified various employee benefils as under:
a) Leave obligations
The leave obligations cover the company's liability for sick and privileged leave.

Rupees in lakhs
Provision for leave encashment

As at As at

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Current* 79 17
Non-current 320 273

* The Company does nofe an unconditional night to defer the sefllements.
b) Defined contribution plans

(i) Provident funa

(i) Superannuation fund

(iiiy State defined contribution plans
- Employees’ Pension Scheine 1995

The provident fund and the state defined conlribufion plan are operaled by the regional provident fund commissioner
and the superannuation fund is administered by the trust. Under the scheimes, the Company is required 1o contribule
a specified percentage of payroli cost to the retirenent benefit schemes fo fund the benefits.

The Company has recognised the following amounts in the Stalement of Profit and Loss for the year:
Rupees in lakhs
Year ended | Year ended W
March 31, 2018 | March 31, 2017

(i) Contribution to provident fund 78 71

(ii) Contribution to employees’ superannuation fund_ 3 4
_(iii) Contribution to employees’ pension scheme 1085 2. . 37
| Tota 114 112




Vidarbha Industries Power Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018 (Continued)

¢) Post employment obligation

Gratuity

The Company provides for graluity for employees in India as per lhe Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Employees who
are in continuous service for a period of 5 years are eligible for gratuity. The amount of graluity payable on
retirement/lermination is the employees last drawn basic salary per month computed proportionately for 15 days

salary multiplied for the number of years of service.

(i) Significant estimates: actuarial assumptions

Valualions tn respect of gratuily have been carried out by an independent acluary, as al the Balance Sheet date,

based on lhe following assumptions:

Particulars

Discount rate (per annum)

Rate of increase in compensation levels
Rale of relum on plan assels

Expected average remaining working lives of
employees in number of years

March 31, 2018

7.65%
7.50%
7.65%

5.25

March 31, 2017

7.05%
7.50%
7.05%

10.22

The estimate of rate of escalation in salary considered in actuarial valuation, lakes into account inflation, seniority,
promotion and other relevant factors including supply and demand in the emplaymenl market.

(ii) Gratuity Plan

Particulars

As at April 01, 2017

Current service cost

Interest cost

Total amount recognised in profit and loss
Remeasurements

Return on plan assels, excluding amount included in
interest expense/(income)

(Gain) / loss from change in demographic assumptions
(Gain ) / loss from change in financial assumptions

Experience (gains) / losses
Total amount recognised in other comprchensive
income

Employer contributions
Benefit payments
As at March 31, 2018

Particulars

As at April 01, 2016

Current service cost

Interesl cost

Total amount recognised in profit and loss
Rcmeasurements

Return on plan assets, excluding amount included in
interest expense/(income)

(Gain) / loss from change in demographic assumptions
(Gain ) / loss from change in financial assumptions
Experience (gains) / Iosses

Total amount recognised in other comprehensive
income

Employer contribulions

Benefit payments

As at March 31, 2017

Present value of
obligation

370

87

26

83

(57
(14)
®)

(77)

(12)
364

Present value of
obligation

230
45
22
67

31

31

(18)

370 -
/.

Fair value of plan
assets

174

12

12

()

(2)
(12)
172

Fair value of plan
assets

171

13
13

- (18)
174

Rupees in lakhs
Net amount

196
57
14
71

(56)
(14)
(6)

(74}

192

Net amount

1195
45
9
54

(®)

3

23

196



Vidarbha Indusfries Power Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year cnded March 31, 2018 (Continued)

The net liabilily disclosed above relates to funded and unfunded plans are as follows:

Rupees in lakhs

Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Presen! value of funded obligations 364 370
f-air value of plan assels 172 174
Deficit of funded plan 182 196
Current Pontion - -
Non-Current portion 192 196
(iii)Sensitivity analysis:
The sensitivity of the definad benefil obligation {0 changes in the weighted principal assumplions is:
Change in assumptions Increase in assumptions Decrease in assumptions
Particulars March March March March March March
31, 2018 31, 2017 31, 2018 31, 2017 31, 2018 31,2017
Discount rate 0.50% 0.50 % -3.03% - 5.83% 3.22% +6.15%
Salary escalation rate 0.50% 0.50% 3.20% + B6.10% -3.05% -563%

The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assurnptions constant.
in practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the
sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the same method (present value of the
defined benefit obhgation calculated with the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period) has been
applied as when calculating the defined benefil liability recognised in the balance sheet. The methods and types of

assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did no{ change compared to the prior period.

(iv)The above defined benefit gratuity plan was administrated 100% by Reliance Nippon Life Insurance Company
Limited (Formerly known as Reliance Life insurance Company Limited) as al March 31, 2018 and as at March 31,

2017.

(v) Defined benefit liability and employer contributions:

The Company will pay demand raised by RLIC towards gratuity liability on time to basis lo eliminate the deficit in

defined benefil plan.

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 6.25 years (2016-17 - 11.77 years).

(vi}The actuarial valuation of gratuily liability does not include liability ol seconded employees as the gratuily will be peid

by the Holding Company as per {erm of secondment

7) Assets pledged as security

Particulars Note no  March 31, 2018

Non =Current
First Charge
Financial Assets

Non-current investments 3.3(a) 4,449
Finance lease receivables 3.3(b) 358,552
Other financial assets 3.3(c) 1,421
Non-financial assets

Propenry, Plant & Equipment 3.1 631
Intangible Assets 3.2 1,066
Other Non-Current Assets 3.4 1,054

Total Non- current assets pledged as security ( A) 367,172

Rupees in lakhs

March 31, 2017

4,425
374,925
1,160

1,143

5,312
388,965



Vidarbha Industries Power Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018 (Continued)

Rupees in lakhs
Particulars Note no  March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Current
First Charge
Financial assets

Trade receivables 3.6(a) 122,572 62,795
Cash and Bank balances 3.6(b) & 4.862 8,373
3.6(c)

Loan 3.6(d) 21,287 56,096
Finance lease receivables 3.6(e) 18,192 17,458
Other cuirent financial Assets 3.6() 6617 8,211
Non-financial assets

Inventories 3.5 5,523 8,832
Other current assets 3.7 3,617 1,452
Total current assets pledged as security (B) 182,670 164,217
Tolal assets pledged as security (A+RB) 549,842 551,182

8) Rclated parly transactions:;
A. Parties where Cantrol exists:
Holding Company:
1. Reliance Power Limited (R Power)
B. Fellow Subsidiaries

1. Sasan Power Limifed (SPL)

2 Siyom Hydro Power Projects Limiled (SHPPL)
3. Samalkot Power Limited (SMPL)

4. Dbhursar Solar Power Private Limited (DSPL)

C. Jointventure
Reliance Geothermal Power Private Limited (RGPPL)

D. Investing parties! promoters having significant Influence on the holding company directly or
indirectly:

Companies
Reliance Infrastructure Limited (R Infra)

Individual
Shri Anil D. Ambani

Major Investing Pary
Rosa Power Supply Company Limited (RPSL)

E. Enterprises over which, individual mentioned tn clause D above, have control
Reliance General Insurance Company Ltd. (RGICL)

F. Key Management Personnel

1. Jay Shah- Manager and Company Secrelary (fill January, 2017)

2. Sayli Kiran Dabholkar - Manager and Company Secretary (w.e.f February 1, 2018)
3. Karunesh Mishra- Chief Financial Officer (lill December 24, 2017)

4.  Mantu Kumar Ghosh - Chief Financial Officer (w.e.f December 25, 2017)

Directors

Smt Rashna Khan

Shri Suresh H Jdashi
Shri Shrikani D Kulkarpi
Shri Vibhav Agarwal
Shri Ashish Padhy



Vidarbha Industries Power Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018 {Continued)

G. Details of transactions and closing bafances:

Rupees in lakhs

_’-mé-rs- o s_ 2017-18 [ 201817
@ Transactions durmgfhe year : .
Remuneration torl-crery management pgrsonnel i i

Short term emp\oyeé benefits : 8 19

Pnst employﬁeél Heﬂned benels ) 1 @

Leave Encashment @ @

Directors Sitling Fees I~ 6 5
Guarantee issued on behalf of the company by -

R Power ) 4:@45 3,404
Professional Fees/Service ChargesiRent (Including Shared Services o |
Charges) -

R Power 755 1,438

" R infra ) 164 105
Insurance Premium )
" RaIcL 499 430
Reimbursement of cxpenses-fsalary - paid on the Company’s behalf
""" RPSL @ @

sPL 535 i

R Power 761 91
Reimbur&;ément of expenses - paid by the company on behalfﬁt‘;\(m‘WM‘W -

. pA R 144 242

SPl_. - e

R Power - 9_
Material/Services received other than EPC Contract

RSTL ; 55 |

! Material/Services given other than EPC Contract
i SPL Y }

R3TL . 26 -
Inter- corporate deposité"ﬁefunded by o

R Power 48,288 68,225

RPSL 6540 | -
tnter-.éorporatc deposits Gi\}en' 1‘0‘ til;'z;rcom pany

S mr— i 761 — 76,620

R Infra 4,000 15.000

RPSL 6,540 _ -
Sale of Energy

Esllnirzaﬁ(i[naclus?ing unb‘i’fwlﬁ:rri revenue of Rs. Nil lacs  (March 31, 2017 | 1?3,280 185‘(;43_
interest from customer on delayed payments i

Rinfra : 4,086 1.850

@ Amount is below the rounding off norm sdopled by the company.



Vidarbha Indusiries Power Limited
Notes to the flnancial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018 (Continued}

H

March 21, 2017

Rupees in lakhs

(i) March 31, 2018
L) P SR
Invesiment in equity shares
~ [raprL - @ @ |
Invesimant in preference shares ) ) ‘ ]
SHPPL 5,548 5,548
Other .R.;ceivables o
SMPL o 108 101
Trade Recélvablestnb!lled Revenue ) )
Rinfra - 122,485 70,773 |
_._E;d‘iiors for capltat expenditure - |
- RWE 1,728 1433
” ..(.I.?adito rs for Supply and Services - o
R Power T o073 1,280
| RPsL i 2z
R Infra 88 %6
Inter-gorporabe deposits givar; b} Ht-he Company -
R Power o 136 40,781
R Infre o 19,000 | 15,000
Interest on Inier-r:_c;ﬂr"pi«'ar;t;deposits given by the Company -
R Infra 2,113 :
Equity shé;é capital (excluding premium) o
| 1 RPower 113 113
| imPSL 36 2%
_!;.;éﬂfgr‘énc; share capital {excluding prer;i'l_zh] .
R Power o 940 940
RF’SL_ ) - 402 402
Guara_ntee- issued on behalf ofjthe‘Cﬂolm pany -
R Power 47,25 3,404
|— Guarantee issued by Compz-«'t;g’,; on behalf of B :
R Power - 20,000 | 20,000 |

@ Amount is below the rounding oft norm adopted by the company.

H Noles:

1.

The Holdlng company has enlered inlc agreements with the lenders of lhe Company wherein it has
commitied/guaranteed o extend financial support in the form of equily or debt as per agreed means of finance,

in respect of the project being underaken/oulstanding borrowings.

telecommunication in the normal course of business.

The above disclosura does nol include fransaclions with public utility service providers, viz. eleciriclty and



Vidarbha Industries Power Limited

Naotes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018 (Continued)

9) Earnings per share:

Particulars

Profit available to equity shareholders (A)

Weighted average number of equily shares (B)

Add: adjustment on account of Compulsarily Converlible
Redeemable Non Cumulative Preference Shares
Weighted average number of equity shares - Diluted (C)
Earnings per share — Basic (Rupees) (A/B)

Eernings per share - Diluted (Rupees) (A/C)

Nominal value of an equity share (Rupees)

7.5% Compulsory Convertible Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference shares had en anti diluling effect on earnings

Year ended
March 31, 2018
23,363
1,491,626
13,424,634

14,916,260
1566.26
156.63

10

Rupees in lakhs

Year ended
March 31, 2017
21.156
1,491,626
13,424,634

14,916,260
1418.27
141.82

10

per sharc and hence have not bean considerad for the purpose of camputing dilulive earnings per shares

10) income Taxes:

The major components of income tax expense for the years ended 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2017 are:

(a) Statement of profit and loss:

Particulars

{a) Income tax expense

Currsn! tax

Current tax on profits for the year
Adjustments for current lax of prior perieds
Total current tax expense

Deferred fax

Decrease (increase) in deferred fax asseis
(Decrease) increase in deferred tax liabiities
Total deferred 1ax expense/(benefit)

Income tax expense

March 31, 2018

6,390

6,390

100
100
6,490

(b) The reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by tax rate :

Particulars

Profit befare income 1ax expense

Tax at the Indian tax rate of 34.608%

Tax effect of armounls which are not deduclible(taxable) in
calculating taxable income:

Expenses (admissible) / inadmissible under income tax act
(net)

Effect of finance lease reduction from lease receivable
Minimum allernate tax on which no deferred tax recognised

Effect of tax on accounl of available tax holiday under seclion
80IA of the Income tax Act/ Recoverable from beneliciary
Income tax expense

March 31, 2018

29,778
10,306

270
(8,541)

6,391

(1,836)
6,490

Rupees in lakhs

March 31, 2017

6,866

6,866

4,170
4,170
11,036

Rupees in lakhs
March 31, 2017
32,169

11,133

125
{5,793)

6,866

(1.205)
11,036



Vidarbha Industries Power Limited
Notes to the Tinancial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018 (Continued)

{c) Tax liabilities {nat of assets)
March 31, 2018

Provision for income tax (advance lax) — Opening balances 5,199
Add: Current tax payable for the year 6,390
Less: Taxes paid (net of refund) (6,226)
Provigsion for income tax ({(advancc tax} — Closing 5,363
balances

{d) Unutilised MAT credit

March 31, 2018
Unutilised MAT credit for which no deferred tax assets hss 24,595
been recognised

Rupees in lakhs

March 31, 2017
233

6.865
(1,899)
5,199

Rupees in lakhs

March 31, 2017
18,205

The Company does not expecl income 1ax liability under normal provision in tha foreserahle fulure, hence tha

Company has not recognised deferred tax assets on MAT credit.

(e) Deferred tax assets and (liabllIties)

Rupees in lakhs

Particulars Finance |ease reccivables

At April 01, 2017

(Charged)/credited to profit and loss
At March 31, 2018

The above deferred tax is recognised on assets given on finance lease.
11} Fair value measurements

(3) Financial instruments by category

As at March 31, 2018

Particulars Amortised cost
Finance lease receivable 376,744
Non Current Investments 4,449
Trade receivables 122,572
Cash and cash equivalents 4,862

Other bank balances -

Loans 21,287
Other financial assets 8,039
Total financial assets 537,953
Financial liabilities

Borrowings 289,413
Trade payables 3,844
Other financial hiabililics 8.519

Total financial liabilities 301,776

{51.433)

(100)
(51,533)

Rupees in lakhs

As at March 31, 2017
Amortised cost
392,383

4,425

62,795

4,801

4,672

56,096

9.371

£34,443

320,385
57
7,647
328,059
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Vidarbha Industries Power Limited
Nates ta the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018 (Continued)

(b) Fair value hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments ihat
are (a) recognised and measured st fair value and (b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are
disclosed in the financial statements. To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair
value, the company has classified its financial insiruments into the three levels prescribed undes the accounting
standard. An explanation of each level follows underneath tha table.

Rupees in lakhs

Assets and liabilities which are measured at amortised Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
cost for which fair values are disclosed as at March 31,

2018

Financial assets

Finance lease receivables - 406,647 - 406,847
Government Bond 22 - - 22
Other financiat assels - - 1,421 1.421
Total financial azsets 22 406,647 1,121 408,090
Financial Liabilities

Borrowings - 239,388 - 239,388
Total financial liabilities - 239,388 - 239,388
Assets and liabilities which are measured at amortised Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
cast for which fair values are disclosed as at March 21,

2017

Financial assets

Finance lease receivables - 423,274 - 423,274
Other financial assels - - 1,160 1,160
Total financial assets and Financial Liabilities - 423,274 5,565 424,434
Borrowings - 270,022 - 270,022
Total financial liabilities - 270,022 - 270,022

(¢) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost
Rupees in lakhs

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 |
. Carrying @ Fair Carrying | Fair
Pariculars amount value amount  vaile
_Firancial Asseg
_Finance lease receivables 376,744 | 408,847 392,383 | 423,274
GovernmentBong 24 22 B
Other financial assels o 1421 1.421 1,160 1,160
Total Financial Assets 378,189 | 408,090 | 393,543 | 424,434
Financlal Liabilities | e
Borrowings 239,388 239,388 | 270,022 | 270,022
; Retention money payable - ‘ R _
| Total Financial Liabllities { 239,388 | 239,388 | 270,022 | 270,022 |



Vidarbha (ndustries Power Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018 (Continued)

(d) Valuation technique used to determine fair values
The main level 3 inputs used by the company are derived and evaluated as follows:

The fair value of financial instruments is determined using discounted cash flow analysis.
The carrying amount of current financial assets and liabilities are cansidered o be the same as their fair values, due 1o
iheir short term nature.

The fair value of ihe long-term Borrowings with floaling-rale of interest is not impacted due to inlerest rate changes, and

will noi be significantly different from their carrying amounts as there is no significant change in the under-lying credit risk
of the Company borrowing (since {he dale of inception of the loans). Fusther, the Company has no long-term Borrowings
with fixed-rate of interest.

Note
Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instrumenis measured using quoted prices.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an aclive markel (for example over-the-counter
derivalives) is determined using valuation fechniquea which maximise the use of ahservahle market data and rely as little
as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inpuls required to fair value an instrument are observable, the
instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is nol based on observable markel data, the instrument is included in
lsvel 3. This is the case for unlisted equity securities which are included in level.

There were no transfers between any levels during lhe year.

The Company’s policy is to recognize transfer into and transfer out of fair value hierarchy levels as at the end of the
reporting peried.

12) Financial risk management

The Company's business activities expose it lo a variety of financial risks, namely liguidity risk, market risks and credit

risk.

Risk Exposure arising from Measurement Management

Credil Risk Cash and cash equivalents, trade Aging analysis Diversification of bank
receivables, financial assels deposits, letters of credit
measured al amorlised cosl. and Credit limits

Liquidily Risk Borrowings and other liabilities Rolling cash flow Availabilily of committed

forecasts credit lines and borrowing
facilities

Market rnisk - foreign Recognised financial assets and Sensitivity Un hedged

exchange liabilities nol denominated in Indian  analysis
rupees (Rs.)

Market risk — interest rate Long-term borrowings at variable Sensitivity Un hedged
rates analysis

Market risk — price risk Unquoled investment in equily shares - -

of Associates — not exposed to price
risk fluctualions

(a) Credit risk

The Company is exposed to credit risk, which is the risk thal counterparty will default on its contractual obligalion
resulting in a financial loss to the company. Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalants, financial assets carried at
amorlised cost and deposits with banks and financial inslitutions, as well as credil exposures to (rade cuslomers
including outstanding receivables.



Vidarbha Industries Power Limited
Notes to the financiat statements for the year ended March 31, 2018 (Continued)

Credit risk management

Credil risk is the risk that a counter party will not meet its obligations under & financial instrument or customer contract,
leading to a financial loss.

The Company's credit risk arises from accounts receivable balances on sale of electricity and finance lease receivable
are based o tariff rate approved by electricily regulator and inter-corporate deposits/loans are given 1o the holding
company. The credit risk is very low as the sale of eleclricity based on {erms of PPA which has been approved by the
regulator and the inter-corparate deposits sre within the same group.

For banks and linancial insfitutions, only highly rated banks/institutions are accepled. Generally all policies surrounding
credil risk have been managed at company level. The Company's policy 1o manage this risk is to inves! in debt
securities that have a good credit rating.

(b) Liquidity risk

Frudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the availability of
funding through an adequate amount of commilled credit facilities to meet obligations when due and to close out market
pasitions. Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying businesses, company treasuiry maintains flexisitity in funding by
maintaining availability under committed credit lines.

In respect of its exisling operalions, lhe Company funds ifs aclivilies primarily through long-erm loans secured against
each power plant and long lerms lpans and advances. In addition, each aof the operaling plants has working capital
loans available to il which are renewable annually, together with cerain intra-group loans. The Company's objective in
relation {o its existing operaling business is to maintain sufficient funding to allow the plants to operate al an optimal
level.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Company's liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis
of expected cash flows. This is generally carried out at local fevel in the operating subsidiaries of the Company in
accordance with practice and limils set by the Company. These limits vary by location lo take into account the liquidity
of the market in which the entity operates. In addition, the Company's liquidity management policy involves projecting
cash flows in major currencies and considering Ihe leve! of liguid assels necessary to meet these, monitoring balance
sheet liquidily ratios against internal and external regulalory requirements and maintaining debl linancing plans.

(i) Maturities of financial liabilities
The amounts disclosed in the below are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Batances due within 12 months
equal their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not significant.

Rupees in lakhs

March 31, 2018 Less than 1 Between 1 year More than 5 Total
year and 5 years years

Financial liabilities

Borrowings 50,986 150,272 191,350 329,608
Borrowings- Short term 50,025 - - 50,025
Trade payables 3,844 - - 3,844
Securily and other deposits 44 - - 44
Retenlion money payable 1,017 - - 1,017
Creditors for capital expenditure 2,897 : - 2,997
Creditors for supplies and -

services 3,485 - 3,485
Olhers 976 - - 976

Total financial liabilities 113,374 160,272 191,350 454,996
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Rupees in lakhs

Less than 1 Between 1 year More than &

March 31, 2017 year and & yoars years Total
Financial liabilities

Borrowings 56,154 175,885 225614 457,653
Borrowings- Short term 50,331 - - 50,331
Trade payables 57 - - 57
Security and olher deposits 26 - - 26
Retention money payable 492 - - 492
Creditors for capital expendifure 2811 - - 2,811
Creditors for supplies and

services 3.223 - - 3,223
Others 1.512 - - 1,512
Total financial llabilities 114,606 175,885 225,614 516,105

(¢} Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair values of fulure cash flows of a financial instrument wili fluctuate because of
volatility of prices in the financial markels. Market risk can be further segregated ag: a) Foreign exchange risk and b)
Interest rale risk.

(i) Forelgn currency risk

Foreign exchange risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company has long term monetary liabilifies which are in
US dollar other than its functional currency.

While the Company has direct exposure 1o foreign exchange rate changes on the price of non-Indian Rupee-
denominated securities and borrowings, it may also be indirectly affecied by the impact of forsign exchange
rate changes on the earnings of companies in which the Company invests. For that reason, the below
sensitivily analysis may not necessarily indicate the tolsl effecl on the Company’s net assets attributable to
holders of equity shares of future movements in foraign exchange rates.

Foreign currency risk exposure:
The company’s exposure {o foreign currency risk (all in USD §) at the end of {he reporting period expressed in

Rupees, are as follows.
Rupees in lakhs

Panrticulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Borrowings 28,187 42,094
Credilors and relention (Net of advance) 341 888
Net exposure to foreign currency risk (liabilities) 28,528 42,982

» Sensitivity of foreign currency exposure

The sensilivity of profit or loss to changes in the exchange rates arises mainly from foreign currency
denominated financial instruments and the impact on other components of equity arises from foreign forward
exchange contracls, foreign exchange oplion conlracts designaled as cash flow hedges.

Rupees in lakhs

Impact on profit after tax Impact on equity

March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31,
2018 2017 2018 2017

USD sensitivity
INR/USD -Increase by 6% (March 31, 2017-6%)* (18.68) (25) (1.693) [2,554)
INR/USD -Decrease by 6% (March 31, 2017-6%)* 18.68 25 1,693 2,554
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{ii) Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is Lthe risk that lhe fair valua or fulure cash flows of a financial insirument will fluciuate because
of changes in market interes! rales, The Company's main interes! rale risk arises from long-term borrowings with
variable rates, which expose the Company to cash flow interest rate risk. During March 31, 2016 and March 31,
2015 the Company's bofrowings at variabte rale were mainly denominated in Rupees.

» Intecresfrafe risk exposure

The exposure of the company's borrowing to interest rate changes at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Rupees in lakhs

Pariculars March 31, 201 March 31, 2017
Variable rate borrowings® | 24,000 3200d
Lf[gtal borrowings 24,000 32,000

*The above borrowing does not includes project loan of Rs.264,839 (March 31, 2017 Rs. 287,938) as interest on
ihese loans are pass-thru, hence there is no interest rate risk involved.

s Sensitivity
Rupees in lakhs
Impact on profit after tax
Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Inlerest rates — increase by 5% on existing interest cost'# (108) (94)
Interest rates — decrease by 5% on exisling interesi cost*# 108 94

* Holding all other variables constant

# The above interest cost sensilivity does nol include interest on project loans as interest on these loans sre
pass-thru, hence fhere is no interest rate risk involved. Sensilivity of project toans on 5% increase/decrease will
be Rs. 1,072 (March 31, 2017 Rs. 1,191)

13} Capital Management

(3) Risk Management

The Company's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the company's ability to continue as a going concern
in order lo provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital. In order {o maintain or adjust the capital structure, the company may adjust the
amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return cspital to shareholders, issue new shares or sefl assets to reduce debt.

The Company monitors capital on basis of tolal equily on a periodic basis. Equity comprises all components of equily
includes the fair value impact. The following table summarizes the capital of the Company:

Rupees in lakhs

" March 34, 2018 March 31, 2017

| Equity 180,214 "~ 165,906

- Debt 288830 | 310936
Total 476,053 485,842 |

(b} The Company is generally regular in payment of its debt service obligation and the Group has nol received any
communication from fenders for non-compliance of any debl covaenant.

(¢) Final Dividends for the year ended March 31, 2018 is Rs. Nil (March 31, 2017: Rs. NIL})
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14) Segment Reporting

The Company's committee of Chief Executive Officers and Chief Financial Officer examine the Company's
performance.

Presently, the Company is engaged in only one segment viz ‘Generation of Power' end as such there is no separale
reporiable segment as per Ind AS 108 'Operaling Segments'. Presenlly, the Company's operations are
predominantly confined in India.

Information abaut major customers

Revenue for the year ended March 31, 2018 and March 31, 2017 were from customers located in India. Customers
include private dislribution entities. Revenue to specific customers exceeding 10% of total revenue for the years
ended March 31, 2018 and March 31, 2017 were as follows:

Rupees in lakhs

For the year ended o
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Customer Name Revenue Percent | Revenue Percent
| R infra 173,202 9073% | 185,043 99.61%

15) Exchange differences on foreign currency monetary items

16

—

17)

18)

The Company had availed the option available with respect to accounting for exchange difference arising on long
term foreign currency monetary items in the Companies (Accounting Slandards) (Second Amendment), Rules,
2011. Due to exercise of the said option the Company had adjusted the value of fixed assets towards the exchange
difference arising on long term foreign currency monetary liabilities.

In transition 1o Ind AS foreign exchange difference is accumulated in foreigh cumrency monetary item transiation
difference account’ and amortised over the balance period of such long term asset / liabilities.

The Company has accumulated the exchange rate gain in ‘Foreign Currency Monetary ltem Translation Difference
Account’ (FCMITDA) of Rs. 1,057 lakhs (March 31, 2017: Rs.2.075 lakhs) and shall amortize the same over the
terms ol the foreign currency monelary item.

Capital Reserve {arisen pursuant to Scheme of Amalgamation)

The capital reserve of Rs. 11,940 lakhs had arisen pursuanl to the Scheme of Amalgamation (Scheme) sanctioned
by the Hon'ble High Cour of Bombay vide order dated March 15, 2013, Reliance Fuel Resources Limited (RFRL), a
fellow subsidiary was amalgamaled into the Company wilh the appointed being date January 1, 2013.

Micro and Small Scale Business Entities

Disclosure of payable to vendors as defined under the "Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act,
2006" is based on the information avaitable with the Campany regerding the status of registration of such vendors
under lhe said Act. There are no overdue principal amounts / interest payable amounts for delayed payments 1o
such vendors at the Balance Sheel date. There are no delays in payment made to such suppliers during the year or
for any earlier years and accordingly, there is no interest paid or outstanding interest in this regard in respect of
paymenis made during the year or brought forward from previous years.

Cost of fuel consumed (including coal, heavy furnace oit and light diesel oil)
Rupees in lakhs

Paricuiars
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Balance at the beginning of the year 3.863 8,285
Add: Purchases during the year 85,288 86,803
Less: Balance af the end of the year 673 3,863

Consumed during the year 88,478 91,235
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19}

20)

Finance Lease Receivables

Particulars

Current finance lease receivables
Non-current finance lease receivables
Total

Minimum lease payments

Not laler than one year

Belween one year and five year

Later than five year

Total

Less: Unearned finance income

Present value of minimum lease payments receivables
Less: Expecied cash outflows

Add: Unguaranteed residual value

Net investment in lease

Less: Allowance for uncolleclible lease payments
Less: Unrecovered Finance lease income

Total

Present value of minimum lease payments

Particulars

Not Iater than one year
Between one year and five year

Later than five year
Total

March 31, 2018

18,192
358 552
376,744

As at
March 31, 2018
87,268
298,325
484,031
849,624
639,289
210335
3,238
167,828
374,925

1,819
376,744

As at

March 31, 2,018
18,192

89,200

102,942

210,334

Rupees in lakhs

March31, 2017

17,458
374,925
392,383

Rupess in lakhs
As at
March 31, 2017
68,893
254 660
595,064
918,617
693,862
224,555

167,823
392,378

392,378

Rupees in lakhs

As at

March 31, 2017
17,458

72316

134,781
224,555

The finance lease receivables, accounied for as finance lease in accordance with Appendix C of Ind AS 17 and [nd
AS 17, relate to the 25-year power purchase agreement under which VIPL selis all of its electricily output of its coal
based generation capacity at Butibori village in Nagpur, Maharashtra of 600 M.

The effective interest rale implicit in the finance lease was approximately 13.42 % far both 2017 and 2018.

Revenue Recognition

In accordance with the terms of PPA and Maharashtra Electricily Regulalory Commission (MERC)'s Multi-Year
Taritf (MYT) regulations, the Company had filed a petition with MERC for fuel surcharge adjustment (FSA) towards
increase in cost of coal over the cost approved in provisional tariff order for the year FY 2014-16 and FY 2015-16.
MERC. in its order dated June 20, 2016, disallowed the Company' claim of FSA for Rs. 43 470 lakhs for the FY
2014-15 and Rs. 30,491 lakhs for the FY 2015-16 and direcled the Company 1o repay the amount to R Infra in six
monthly inslaliments from July 20186. In the said order, MERGC followed the same basis for the purpase of

determining allowable cost of coal for the Mulli-Year Tariff period of FY 2016-17 to FY 2019-20.
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Againsi the said order of MERC, the Company filed an appeal with APTEL. in its order dated November 03 2016,
APTE (. directed MERC to rework the pass through fuel costs to be aliowed to be recovered by the Caompany | as
part of ils tanff. Subsequently, the Company filed a revised petition on December 08, 2016 with MERC as directea in
APTEL's order. On January 03 2017, MERC Nled an appeal against the APTEL order in Hon'tle Supreme Court of
India. Pending disposal of the appeal, {he Company has charged the pass through costs as per the terms of Power
Purchase Agreement / advice received and no impact of ihe disallowance earlier directed by MERC of Rs_ 43,470
lakhs for the Y 2014-15, Rs. 30,421 fakhs for the FY 2015-156, Rs 17,300 lakhs for the FY 2016-17 and Rs.23,814
for FY 2017-18 or of the APTEL order has been considered in the financial stalements.

21

Corporate Social Resporisibility

The Company is required to incur an expenditure of Rs. 546 lakhs (March 31, 2017: Rs. 373 lakhs) being 2% of the
avarage nel profit durinng the iree immediately preceding financial years, towards corporate social responsibilily,
calculated in the manner as staled in the Acl, Against the szid required amount, lhe Company has spent Rs.554
lakhs (March 31, 2017. Rs. 264 lakhs) for purpose other than acguisilion/construclion of assel during lhe financial

year,

22) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities:

Farticulars

Yaar Ended
March 31,2018

Year Ended
March 31,2017

_1;6ng term Borrowings

Opening Balance

- Nor Current 239,148 249,939
- Current 30,450 | ~ 30,780
| Availed duning the year/period ’ - 16,080
_E:hanges in Fair Value
- impaci of Effeclive Rate of Inverest (424) 627
_Unrealised and Realised Exchange gaiﬁ / loss 74 -
"ﬁepaid During the year/period o {30,443 (20,818}
| Closing Balance T 238,614 269,607
Short term Borrowings
"Opening Balance 50,331 52,388
“Availed during the year/period A - 1510
Repaid During lhe year/period (308 ¢ (3,567}
Closing Balance 50,025 A‘ 50,331
Interest Expenses
Opening Balance )
Inferest agcrued and due on borrowings N 193
Interest acerued but not due on borrowings 417 583
Interest Charge as per Statement Profit & Loss o ' 33,600 34,809
Changss in Fair Value o o
- linpact of Effeclive Rate of Interest {496) 627)
"Interest paid (o Lenders (32,947) (34.341)
Closing Palance o
[ Interest accrued and due on berrowings R 1 -
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings T a7 417
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23) Fixed Assets under lease
Rupees in lakhs

Gross Block (atcosty

Previous GAAP Additions | Deductions during | i As at |
carrying value as | during tha year the period | March 31, 2018

Particulars at March 31, 2017

| I'1eehold land g 6,056 | - " - 6,056 |
Leasehold 1and ' 2,684 | - - 2,684
Transmission line land T 130 - o 130
' Buildings © 61,025 - - 61,025
| Plant and machinery 365,205 | - 365,205
| Railway siding 28,883 - -7 28,883
Transmission fine 2,734 | - - 2,734
Furniture and fixtures 232 o - - 232
Molor vehicles 217 B il 217
| Office equipments 198 | - 1 198
Compﬁférs 246 | - - ’ 246
Total - 467,610 - = i 467,610

Nole: The above value of essets does nol include exchange difference of Rs. 921 Lakhs (March 31, 2017; Rs.882
lakhs).
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